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3. Shri. Shan Mohan Sagili, IAS
Additional Commissioner, APICDA
4. Shri. Abhishek Chaudhary
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5, Shri Pradeep Kumar Agarwal
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6. Shri. Srikanth Kommu
(General Manager (P&T., NICDC Ltd)
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(Nominated by APIIC)
Managing Director
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AUDITORS:

M/s. Kommuru Associates
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Appointed by C&AG

BANKERS: ]

Union bank of India
State bank of India
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NOTICE OF ADJOURNED 04" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SHORTER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE ADJOURNED FOURTH (04TH)
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM
INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED WILL BE HELD TENTATIVELY ON
WEDNESDAY, THE 27TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 04.30 P.M THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING (“VCM”)YOTHERAUDIO-VISUALMEANS (“OAVM™).

ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM NO.1

'In receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial vear
ended 3 1st March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s). the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Auditor’s report on Annual Financial Statements of the company for the vear
ended 31st March 2022 be and is hereby taken note of.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the comments of C&AG on Annual Accounts of the company lor the
year ended 3 1st March 2022 be and is hereby taken note of.™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Audited Annual Accounts of the company comprising of the
Balance Sheet as at 3 1st March 2022 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date
along with the Cash Flow Statement as at 315t March 2022 and the explanatory notes annexed thereto or
forming part of any document referred above be and are hereby approved;”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director/Company secretary of the company be and is
hereby severally authorized to initiate and complete the requisite acts, deeds, things, including but not
hmited to filmg of AOC 4 XBRL wath the Registrar of Companies, as may be required in this regard.™

By order of the Board
For NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited

Sd/-
Mr. CH.N.V.Rambabu
Company Secretary

Date: 27.09.2023
Place: Mangalagiri

02
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NOTES:

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,2020 1ssued by the Mimistry of Corporate Affairs followed by
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13.2021. the Physical attendance of the members to the AGM
venue is notrequired and hence the 03rd Adjourned Annual General Meeting (AGM ) of the Company
will be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Atfairs,
the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the mambers 1s not available for this AGM.
However, the Body Corporate is entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode shall be open 15 minutes before the time
schedulei.e., 04:30 P.M. on 27th Day of September, 2023,

The shareholders are requested to use the following VC/OAVM link to join the meeting.

Topic: Notice for Adjourned 04th AGM of NICDIT Krishnapatmam Industrial City Development
Limited tentatively scheduled to be held on 27.09.2023 a1 04:30 PM - Reg.

Time: Sep 27,2023 04:30 PMISD

Teams Meeting

hitps://teams.microsolt.com/I'meetup-

join/19%3ameeting MTMyNzImZTUtY mMyY SO0ZDIhLTIhY WINTEwZ jkxMzhkNGIz%40thr
ead v2/(7context="%7b%2211d%22%3a%22607%165-ea59-4b37-2071-
09dd4defcal%22%2¢%2201d%22%3a%22{77c338c-13d3-4a47-a918-6c¢T7d842a022%22%7d

Meeting ID: 446 056 758 968
Passcode: JdgzoG

The attendance of Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

Member(s) are requested to notify immediately any change in their address to the Company at the
Registered Office.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint helder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled 10 vote.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
addresses to the Company atils registered office address.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to bring the Authorization letter along with a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behall'at the Meeting.

The Register of Directors and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act,
2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the Company
al an early date, 50 as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

" Anmunl Bepors 2020-2022 03
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The Meeting will be convened at a short notice afier obtaining consent of the members as per the
pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the Company.

By order of the Board
For NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited

Sd/-
Mr. CH.N.V.Rambabu
Company Secretary

Date: 27.09.2023
Place: Mangalagiri
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NOTICE OF 04" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FOURTH (04TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF THE MEMBERS OF NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT
LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, THE 28TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2022 AT 11.25
AM THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (*VCM")OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS
(“OAVM™).

ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM NO.1

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 3 1st March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thergon.

ITEMNO.2

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pradeep Kumar Agarwal (DIN: 01683484), who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

ITEMNO.3

To consider, take note and approve the appointment of M/s. Kommuru Associates as Statutory
Auditors by Comptroller & Auditor General of India

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and suoch other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, subject to statntory
maodification[s] or re-enactment thereof for time being in foree, the members of the Company be and
hereby take nole of appointment of M/s. Kommuru Associates, as Statutory Auditors of the Company by
Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide letter No./CA.V/COY/ANDHRA PRADESH, NKICDL
(1)/984, dated 07/09/2022.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEMNO.4

To regularize the appointment of Dr. Srijana Gummalla, IAS (DIN: 08500020), as Nominee
Director of the Company and designated as Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ol Section 152, 161(1) & (3). 196 and any other
applicable provisions of the companies Act, 2013, read with Companies { Appoiniment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules. 2014, subject to the statutory modification(s) or reenactment thersof for time being
in force and subject to the enabling provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, consent of
the Members of the Company be and hereby accorded Lo ratily the appointment of Dr. Srijana Gummalla,
IAS (DIN: 08500020), as Nominge Director of the Company and designated as Managing Director ofthe
company for a period of 5 years, who was appointed as additional Director of the company with effect
from 2151 October, 2022."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any director of the Company or Company Secretary be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board
For NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited

Sd/-
Mr. CH.N.V.Rambabu
Company Secretary

Date: 27.12.2022
Place: Mangalagiri
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NOTES:

® [n view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic. social distancing is a norm to be
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020, Circular No, 20/2020 dated May 05,2020 jssued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs followed by Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,2021, the Physical attendance of the
members to the AGM venue is not required and hence the 4th Anmzal General Meeting (AGM) of
the Company will be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM).

¢ Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM. However, the Body Corporate is entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their voles through e-voting,

* The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode shall be open 15 minutes before the time
schedulei.e.. 11:25 A M. on 28th Day of December, 2022.

¢ The VC/OAVM link will be sent to the shareholders at their registered email address, before the date
of meeting.

e The attendance of Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of reckoning the quornm under Section 103 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

¢ Member(s) are requested to notify immediately any change in their address to the Company al the
Registered Office.

¢ [n case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

o Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requestsd to register their e-mail
addresses to the Company at its registered office address.

s Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to bring the Authorization letter along with a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

¢ The Register of Directors and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies
Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

e Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date, 30 as to enable the Managsment to keep the information ready at the
meeting.

® The Meeting will be convened at a short notice after obtaining consent of the members as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Association of the Company in
respect of which a format of the written consent is attached as Annexure ITto the Notice.

" Anmunl Bepors 2020-2022 07
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statements, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
set out all material facts relating to the business under Item No. 4 of the accompanying 04th AGM
Notice.

ITEMNO4

Itis hereby brought o the notice of the Board that the Govt of Andhra Pradesh. I & C (Infra) Department
has issued the GO, MS. No, 67, Dt. 06.09.2021 directing that Vice Chairman & Managing Director of
APIIC shall act as a Managing Director of NICDIT Krishnapatmam Industrial City Development Ltd
(NKICDL). Pursuant to G.O. Rt. No. 2209 dated 21.10.2022 the Board of Directors through circular
resolution dated 17.11.2022 appointed Dr. Srijana Gummalla, [AS, (DIN: 08500020) as Additional
Director of the Company with effect from 215t October, 2022, as nominated by APIIC. The Board of
Directors as per G.O.Rt.No, 67, dt 06.09.2021 proposed to regularize the appointment of Jr. Srijana
Gummalla, TAS, (DIN; 08500020) as Nominee Director and designated as a Managing Director of the
Company with effect from 21.10.2022.

The Board of Directors has proposed the members of the Company to approve the appointment of
Managing Director of the company,

Your Board recommends the resolution at set out in Item No. 4 for approval of the members as Ordinary
resolution.

Mone of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and therr respective relatives, in
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No, 4 of the
Notice.

By order of the Board
For NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited

Sd/-
Mr. CH.N.V.Rambabu
Company Secretary

Date: 27.12.2022
Place: Mangalagiri

08
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BOARD'S REPORT

To

The Members,

M/s. NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited,

Mangalagiri

Your Dirsctors have pleasure in presenting the 4th (Fourth) Board’s Report on the affairs of the
Company for the year ended on 31st March, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance, for the vear ended 3 1st March. 2022 is summarized below:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31"March, 2022 | 31"March, 2021
(Rupees in Lakhs) |(Rupees in Lakhs)

Revenue from Operations 0.00 0.00
Other Income 1917.60 26.94
Total Revenue 1917.60 26.94
Expenses 561.30 286.15
Depreciation 497.00 7.50
Pr-u [it/(loss) Before exceptional and extraordinary 25930 (266.71)
items and Tax

Less: exceptional and extraordinary items 0.00 0.00
Profit/ (loss) Before Taxation 859.30 (266.71)
Less; - Current Tax 23520 S0
Less: - Deferred Tax 5.00 (4.28)
Profit / (loss) After Tax 619.20 (262.43)
Other Comprehensive Income/loss for the yvear 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income/(loss) for the year 619.20 {262.:43)

2. STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Mis NICDIT Krishnapamam Industrial City Development Limited (NKICDL) is an unlisted Public
Limited Company and was incorporated on 07th August 2018 under the Companies Act 2013, NICDIT
Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited (NKICDL) is 50:50 joint venture company of
National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) and the Government of
Andhra Pradesh, represented by Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructire Development Corporation
Limited (APIC) incorporated for development of Krishnapatnam Node which is a part of Chennai
Bengaluru Industmal Commidor.

The Company has earned a profit of Rs, 619.20 Lakhs during the year under review as against the loss of
Rs. 262.43 Lakhs of previous financial year 2020-2021.

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
There are no changes in the nature of Business.

(" Annunl Bepert 2020-2022 09
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4. DIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL (KMP)

During the period under review, there were changes in the constitution of Board.

As on the date of report, the Board of Directors of the Company constitutes following:

5.No. Mame of Director Designation

L Shri. Ramakmishnan Kankalvalaven, JAS Chamrman & Director

(Nominated by APTIC)
2. Shri. J.V.N. Subramanyam, IAS Managing Director

{Nominated by APIIC)
3. Shri. Shan Mohan Sagili, TAS Director

(Neminated by APIIC)
4. Shri Pradeep Kumar Agarwal Director

(Nommated by NICDC)
3. Shri. Abhishek Chaudhary Director

(Nominated by NICDC)
6. Shri. Srikanth Kommu Director

(Nominated by NICDC)
T Mr. Paleti Venkateshwararao CFO (EMP)

During the period under review, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel:

a.  APIIC has withdrawn the nomination of Shri Raveen Kumar Reddy Kunati as nominee Director of
the Company w.e.f. 19.05.2021.

b. APIIC has nominated Shri Shan Mohan Sagili (07972835) as Additional Director of the Company
w.e.f.25.08.2021.

c. Mz Paleti Venkateshwararao was appointed as CFOQO(KMP) w.e.f. 12th October, 2021,

d. APIC has Nommated Shri. Javvadi Venkata Naga Subramanyam, as Managing Director on the
Board of the companyw.e.f.21.12.202].

In view of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is mandatorily required to
appoint any whole time Company Secretary for the company. The management of the Company has
appointed Shri CH.N.V.Rambabu as Company Secretary w.e.f. 03.08.2022.

5. A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO
INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF
THE INDEPENDENTDIRECTORSAPPOINTED DURINGTHE YEAR.

There 15 no Independent Director on the Board of the Company, hence the above clause i1s not applicable
to the Company.

6. THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES ORASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURINGTHE YEAR

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or an Associate Company,

10 U™ Annunl Repore 20071-2022
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7. THE DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS, COVERED UNDER CHAPTER-V OF THE ACT

Sl No. Particulars Remarks
I accepted during the year; NA
2 remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year NA
3 whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or

payment of interest thereon during the year and if so, number of
such cases and the total amount involved-

(1) at the beginning of the year NA
(i1} maximum during the year; NA
(iii) at the end of the vear; NA

8. THE DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTERVOFTHEACT

The Company has not accepted any Deposits during the year and there are no outstanding or overdue
deposits as on this date within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act. 2013 as amended and in
force.

9. THE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUSAND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

10. THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
WITHREFERENCE TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the vear under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the
design or operation were observed. nevertheless such systems are continuously and [rom time to time
evaluated for their efficacv and improvements. if any. required are implemented.

1LTHE PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION(1) OF SECTION 188

All the related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course
of business of the Company and were on an arm’s length basis,

During the period under review, the Company has no materially significant related party transactions
entered by it with the promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other persons which may have a
potential conflict with the interest of the company.

Particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referrsd
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 under third proviso thereto shall be
disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 is appended as Annexure - I to the Board’s Report.

" Anmunl Bepors 2020-2022 11
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12.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the
nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars Amount in Rupees
Foreign Eamings -
Foreign Expenses -

13 ASTATEMENT INDICATING HOW THE BOARD HAS MADE THE FORMAIL ANNUAL
EVALUATION OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS

In accordance with Section 134(p) of Companies Act 2013, Every listed company and every other public
company having a paid-up share capital of twenty-five crore rupees or more calculated at the end of the
preceding financial year shall include, in the report by ils Board of directors. a statement indicating the
manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that
ofits committess and individual directors.

The comprehensive assessment of the Board's performance during the reporting period highlights a
commitment to governance excellence, fostering collaboration, and achieving strategic objectives. Key
strengths observed include effective communication, sound decision-making, and a dedication to
upholding the orgamzation's values. Opportumities for improvement have been identified and will be
addressed to further enhance the Board's effectiveness in fulfilling its vital role in guiding our
organization toward its mission and vision."

14. COST AUDITORS

The provisions of Section 14% of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the Company and hence, no
Cost Auditors are appomted.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial pesition of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of thisreport.

16. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The requirement of disclosure under Sexual MHarassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 1s only applicable when there are more than 10 employees.

The employees employed in the Company being less than 10, the company is not required to make any
disclosures.

12 U™ Annunl Repore 20071-2022
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17. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE
YEARATONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016(31 OF 2016) during the year.

18, DIVIDEND
The Company has not declared any dividend this vear hence dividend is not applicable.

19. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

No amount was transferred (o the reserves during the financial vear ended 31st March, 2022.

20. DEPOSITS

The Company has not aceepted any Deposits during the vear and there are no outstanding or overdue
deposits as on this date within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended and in
force.

21. SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was a change m the Share Capital of the Company. The authorized
share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2022 15 Bs. 1250,00,00,000/- divided inio 125,00,00,000
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. Also, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as on March
31,20221sRs. 10,44.20,62 400/- divided into 1,04,42,06,240 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each.

Pursuant to the rights issue made on 24.08.2021, and the circular resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 03.11.2021, 13,77,57.672 (Thirteen Crores Seventy-Seven Lakhs Fifty-
Seven Thousand 5ix Hundred Seventy-Two) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs.
137.75.76.720/- (Rupees One Hundred Thirty-Seven Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Seventy-Six Thousand
Seven Hundred and Twenty Only) were allotted by offering 6.88.78,836/- (Six Crore Eighty-Eight
Lakhs Seventy-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-Six) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (Rupees
Ten only) aggregating to Rs. 68 87,88 360/- (Sixty-Eight Crores Eighty-Seven Lakhs Eighty-Eight
Thousand Three Hundred and Sixty Only) by transfer of leasehold rights to the Company and equal
number of equity shares shall be issued to the trustee members, NICDIT Trust for cash in the proportion
of 50:50 with the rights issue entitlement ratio of 1:0.151975166.

22. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31st March 2022, 3 Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company
were convened and held on 24th August, 2021, 21st December, 2021 and 8th February, 2022. Except for
the first quarter meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company, the intervening gap between the
Meetings was within the period of 120 days. MCA vide General circular no. 11/2020 dated 24th March
2020 has given relaxation for the first quarter due to impact of COVTD-15 pandemic.

23. LOANS., GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

During the financial year under review. the Company did not give any loans. directly or indirectly to any
person or to other body corporate, nor did it give any guarantee or provide any security in connection

" Anmunl Bepors 2020-2022 13
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with loan to any other body corporate or person exceeding the limits as specified under Section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013. The details of loans given are disclosed in the note no. 7 under Notes to Financial
Statements for FY 2021-22. Further, the Company has not made any investments in terms of Sec. 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

24. ANNUAL RETURN

As per Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 every company shall place a copy of the annual refurn
on the website of the company, if any. and the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in the
Board's report.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Annual return for the linancial
year ended 3 1st March 2022 is placed on the website of the Company at https://kriscity.in

25, SECRETARIAT STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company, The same i3 also subject to its review from time to
time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said

policy.

27. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER
SUB- SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149

There being no Independent Director on the Board of the Company, there was no declaration submitted
by independent director under sub- section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 during the vear.

28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

During the period under review, the Company does not fall under the applicability criteria of CSR.
Hence, the Company had netther constituted CSR committee nor adopled CSR policy.

29. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

M/s. Kommuru Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company by Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide letter No./CA. V/COY/ANDHRA
PRADESH, NKICDL (1)/1680, dated 27/08/2021 for FY 2021-22.

There were no qualifications in the Statutory Audit Report issued by M/s. Kommuru Associates,
Chartered Accountants, on the financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22.

The C&AG has appointed M/s Kommuru Associates, Chartered Accountants vide its letter V/
COY/ANDHRA PRADESH,NKICDL(1)/984 dated 07/09/2022 as the statutory Auditors for Financial
year 2022-23,
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30. BOARD’'S COMMENTS ON THE STATUTORY AUDIT AND C&AG REPORT

The report issued by Statutory Auditors, when read together with the relevant notes to the accounts and
accounting policies are seli~explanalory and the report do not contain any qualilications.

The Supplementary Audit Report received from the office of Comptroller and Auditor General of India
bearing Lr. No. PAG(AU)/AP/TSC-1/NKICDL/2023-24/169 dated 30/08/2023 for the FY-2021-22 has

following comments. The management responses to the comments on the C&A G report are as follows:

ESI. No.

C & AG Comments

Management Response

Other Expenses (Note-19): 5.37 crore

Other expenses of Rs. 5.37 Crore include
Rs. 4.67 Crore towards the expenditure
mcurred on consultants appointed as
Programme Manager [or New Cilies
(PMNC), which was in the nature of capital
expenditure. Hence, the same should have
been recognized as Capital Work in
Progress (CWIP) and apportioned among
projects on a suitable basis. on completion
instead of recognizing as revenue
expenditure. Thus, incorrect accounting
treatment results m overstatement of Other
Expenses by 24.67 crore and under-
statement of CWIP by 24.67 crore with
corresponding understatement of Profit for
the yearto the same extent.

It is to inform that the frst vear PMNC
milestones/activities were generic in nature
and non-project specific and cannot be
attributed/apportioned amongst projects.
Hence. the same has been treated 'as
revenue expenditure and was not
capitalized in the books of accounts.
Relevant information and detailed
explanations were provided during the

course of audit explaining the rationale.

Hence. there is no over-statement of Other
Expenses and understatement of CWIP and
profit for the year.

While ascertaiming the nature of PMNC
expenditure for ensuing finaneial year, the
milestones/activities will be reviewed as to
their nature and appropriate disclosures
will be made while finalizing the accounts
forthe FY 2022-23.

I

Other Current Assets Loans (Note-7):

300 Crore,

The Company deposited 300 crore in the
form of Inter Corporate Deposit (ICDs)
with AP State Financial Services
Corporation Ltd (APSFSCL) in August
2021 for a tenure of six months maturity,
i.e., by Febrmuary 2022, whereas the
deposited amount (300 crore) was not
retned by APSFSCL as on 31 March 2022
alier the maturity of ICDs, Since ICDs were
neither renewed nor any Loan agreement
with APSFSCL was in place, the
classification of the same as 'Loans

The Outstanding amounts lying with
APSFSCL as at 31st March 2022 have been
classified as Loans under Financial Assets
line item as il is in the nature of Financial
Assets as stipulated in IND AS. Tt doesn’t
take the nature of Other Current Asset as the
underlying transaction 1s that of amounts
receivable in ¢ash,

Hence, there 15 no under-statement of Other
Current Assets and overstatement of Loans
Receivables. Further, the present
disclosure does not have any net impact on
the Balance Sheet as both Financial Assets-
Loans and Other Current Assets fall under

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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receivable' (Note-6) is not correct. Instead,
the same should have been disclosed under
Other Cuwrrent assets in the nature of
receivables, Thus, incorrect classification
resulted in understatement of Other Current
assets and overstatement of Loans
Receivables by ¥ 300 crore.

the line item — Current Assefs,

The audit comument 18 noted for fiture
guidance and necessary action required if
any will be taken while finalizing the
accounts forthe FY 2022-23,

Disclosure.

Ason 31 March 2022, the Company issued
51,96,03,120 Equity shares of 10 each to
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation (APIIC) for consideration
other than ecash, ie.. towards cost of the
land admeasuring 2019.8 Acres transferred
1o the Companv. However, the same was
not disclosed in the Note-9 (Equity Share
Capital). Non-disclosure results in non-
compliance with the provisions of
Schedule-IIT of Companies Act 2013,
which stipulated that the Company shall
disclose. inter alia. Aggregate number and
Class of shares allotted as fully paid up
pursuant to contract(s) without payment
being received n cash for the penod of five
years immediately preceding the date as at
which the Balance Sheet is prepared

Ii iz to inform that vide note no.9b, it is
disclosed that “The ratio of shareholding of
NICDIT and APIIC in the company is 30%
and 50% respectively. APIC's equity
contribution in share capital is by the way
of lease of 1814.5]1 Acres of land in
Krishnapatnam Node through lease
agreement executed between APIIC and
the Company dated 26.03.2021 with
document no. 1096/2021. An amount
equivalent to the lease value of the land
provided by APIIC in line with above stated
Lease agreement ie., Rs. 450,72.42.840
(Rs. 24.84 Lacs per acre approved as per
Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs)
is transferred by NICDIT on 31.03.2021
and during FY 21-22, Second Rights issue
has been made by NKICDL for
13,77.57,672 shares in which APIC's
equity contribution is by the way of lease of
277.29 Acres of land in Krishnapatnam
Node through lease agreement executed
between APIIC and the Company dated
28.08.2021 with document no. 1817/2021.
An amount equivalent to the lease value of
the land provided by APIIC in line with
above stated Lease agreement ie, Rs.
68.87.88.360 (Rs. 24.84 Lacs per acre
approved as per Cabinet Committee on
Economic Affairs) is transferred by
NICDIT on 06.09.2021. With regard to the
above two tranches of transfer of lease hold
rights stamp duty has been exempted by
Go. AP vide G.O. MS NO 76."

Further. the provisional comment is noted
for future guidance and necessary action

16
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will be taken while finalizing the accounts
for the FY 2022-23. The same will be
included while printing Anpual report for
Financial Year 21-22 since these do not
have any financial impact and are
disclosures only.

31. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, the statutory auditors has not reported the Board, under Section 143 (12) of

the Compamies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board's report.

32, SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, the company is required to appoint the
Secretarial Auditor for the FY-2021-22. The Company in its | 7th Board Meeting held on 29th September
2022 has appointed Mr. N.V.S Naga Raju. Practicing Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor to
conduct the secretarial Audit for Financial vear 2021-22.

The reportissued by the secretarial Auditor has following observations:

!SL No. Secretarial Auditor Observations Management Response

1 As on the end of Fmancial Year 31 March | The Company has appointed Mr N.V.
2022 the Company was yel to appoint the | Rambabu Choppala as Company secretary
Company Secrctary in whole {ime | inwhole time employment after the closure
employment as required under the | offinancial year.
provisions of section 203 of the companies
act 2013,

2 Company had delayed in filing few forms | Due to intemal protocol in finalization of
with Registrar of Companies beyond due | Board minutes, the forms were filed with
date. delay. However, the management will try to

avoid the delay filings.

The secretanial audit report issued by N.V.S. Nagaraju, PCS is enclosed as Annexure - [T

33. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS® APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE
ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS
PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF 178 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The provisions of Section 178(1) read with Rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers)
ritles 2019 relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are applicable to the
Company. The Company is in the process of constituting the Nomination and Renumeration Commitiee
and also in the process of framing the policy on directors® appomtment and remuneration including

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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criteria for determining qualifications. positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters
provided under sub-section (3) of 178 ofthe companies act, 2013.

34. INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure all the assets are
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are
authorized, regarded and reported correcily.

The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits. review by management
and procedures. The internal control is designed to ensure that the linancial and other records are reliable
for preparing financial statements and other data, and for maintaining accountability of assets. Normal
forcible risks of the Company's Assets are adequately covered by comprehensive insurances.

35. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM

The provisions of Section 177 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2013 is applicable to the Company. The Company is in the process of constituting the
Audit Committee.

36. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company confirms
that-

i, in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company has
followed the applicable accounting standards and there are no material departures from the same.

ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and niade
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

ii1. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

1v. theDirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a *going concern’ basis.

v. the Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company.

vi. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services of the
employees.
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Your Directors also place on record their appreciation for the assistance, cooperation and support
received from the Governmentof Andhra Pradesh, the Government of India, Banks and vendors.

Your Directors thank the shareholders for their support and conlidence reposed in the company and the
management and look forward to their continued co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of
NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY

DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Date: 27.09.2023 Sd/-
Place: Mangalagiri Dr. N. Yuvaraj, IAS
Chairman

(DIN: 06679574)
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FORM NO.AOC-2
Details of confracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
1. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
2 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
3 Duration of the contracts/amrangements/transactions
4. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transachions including the
value, if any
3. Tustification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL
6. date(s) of approval by the Board
7. Amount paid as advances, il any:
8. Date on which the special resolulion was passed i general
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:

a) | Name(s} of the related party and APIIC Ltd
nature of relationship
b) | Nature of . ‘
contracts/arrangements/iransactions Leasing of Land
¢) | Duration of the
090 Years

contracls/arrangements/trangactions

d)

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any

Transferring of Leaschold Rights on the 277.29 acres of
land for a period of 99 years vide Lease deed executed
between APIIC and the Company dated 28.08.2021
registered document no. 1817/2021 for Rs.
137,75,76,720/- (Rupees One Hundred Thirtv-Seven
Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Seventy-S5ix Thousand
Seven Hundred and Twenty Only).

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

24.08.2021

Amount paid as advances, if any:

Date: 27.09.2023
Place: Mangalagiri

For and on behall of the Board of
NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Sd/-

Dr. N. Yuvaraj, IAS
Chairman

(DIN: 06679574)
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH. 2022

[Pursuant to section 204({1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rufe No. Y of the
Companics[Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To

The Members.

M/s. NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIALCITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED,
10th Floor, APIIC Towers, Plot No. 1, IT Park, Mangalagiri,

Guntur 522503, AndhraPradesh, India.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED (CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963) (hereinafier called the Company).
Secretarial Aodit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's hools, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, 1 hereby report
that in my opinion. the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31.03.2022, ("Audit Period") complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent. in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinatier:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial vear ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and the rules made there under and other applicable
provisiens of the Companies Act. 1956 which are still in force;

1. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made there under

IIT. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bve-laws framed under that Act;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1,  Whereas in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was
required to appoint the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP).

As on the end of Financial Year 31 March 2022 the Company was yet to appoint the Company
Secretary in whole time employment as required under the provisions of section 203 of the
companies act 2013. However, the Company has appointed Mr. N.V. Rambabu Choppala as
Company secretary in whole time employment after the closure of financial year.

]
.

Company had delayed in filing few forms with Registrar of Companies beyond due date.
However. the same has been filed with additional fee and same has been taken on record by
Registrar of Companies, Andhra Pradesh.

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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We further report that;

The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws and
maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this audit since the
same have been subject to review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors, and other designated
professionals.

The Board of Directors of the Company 15 duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
MNon- Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice 15 given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were senl al least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaming further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningtul participation al
the meeting.

1. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and therules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and Exteraat-Conmneretnt
Beorrowings: (Not Applicable to the Company)

IV. The [ollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act");

[

The Securities und Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company)

3. TheSescurities and Exchange Board of [ndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992,
(Not Applicable to the Company)

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the Company)

EJ'J

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Emplovee Stock Option Scheme and Employec
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelimes, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company)

6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008: (Not Applicable to the Company)

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Regisirars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the
Company)

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not
Applicable to the Company)

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not
Applicable to the Company)

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing and Obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015, (Not Applicable to the Company)
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i.  Otherlaws applicable to the Company.
1. Indian Contract Act. 1872

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2, with respect to Board and General Meetings
respectively, issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

As per the minutes of the meetings dulv recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board
were upanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

Sd/-

CS.N. V.5 NagaRaju,

Practicing Company Secretary ACS.

ACS Membership No.:37767

Certificate of Practice No.: 14940

UDIN: A037767D002697248

Place: Vijayawada
Date: 13.12.2022

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.
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To

The Members,

M/s. NICDIT KRISINAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED,

10th Floor, APIIC Towers, Plot No.1,1T Park Mangalagiri
Gunrur 522503 Andhra Pradesh India

Ourreport of the even date is to be read along with this letter.

L

EJ'l

Sd/-

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records, The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of thecompany.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening ol events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations.
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

CS.N.V.5 NagaRaju,

Practicing Company Secretary ACS,
ACS Membership No.:37767
Certificate of Practice No.: 14940
UDIN: A037767D002697248

Place: Vijavawada
Date: 13.12.2022
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PAG(Au)/AP/TSC(PSU)/AMG-II/AA/NKICDL/2022-23/
l#371250/2023
U MEEEER (SRargdan) o1 srafad, ‘?PE
A=y w29, fasmarsT - 520 002. e ,QL
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPALACCOUNTANT GENERAL (AUDIT) M’
e e ANDURA PRADESH, VIJAYAWADA - 520 002, :,E:_':::

Lr. No.PAG(AUYAP/TSC-1 /INKICDL-FY22/2023-24//¢9Date: 30-08-2023

To

Managing Director

NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City Development Limited,
10" Floor, APIIC towers, Plot No.-1,

IT Park, Mangalagin,

Guntur, Andhra Pradesh-522503

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of the NICDIT Krishnapatnam

Industrial City Development Limited (NKICDL) for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Sir,

1 am to forward herewith comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of
NKICDL for the year ended 31 March 2022 for necessary action.

2. The date of placing the Comments along with Financial Statements and Auditors' Report
before the sharcholders of the Company may please be intimated and a copy of the
proceedings of the meetings be fummished.

3. The date of forwarding the annual report and financial statements of the Company
together with the Auditors” Report and Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India to the State Government of Andhra Pradesh for the year ended 31 March 2022 for
being laid before the Legislature may also be intimated. Copy of the letter from the
Legislature Secretariat indicating date on which Annual report laid before State Legislature
may also be intimated.

3. Five copies of the Annual Report for the year 2021-22 may be funished to this Office.
Encl: As above.
Yours faithfully,

BHASKAR KALLURU
Senior Deputy Accountant General

Address ¢ 8th Floor, Stalin Central Mall, M.G.Road, Governorpet, Vijayawada - 520 002,
Wehsile ; wwwoag govin‘apsndhea-pudohien o mail | agmeandheaprade g gov in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022.

The preparation of financial statements of NICDIT Krishnapatnam I[ndustrial City
Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial
reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion
on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is
stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 29.06.2023 which

supersedes their earlier report dated 29.09.2022.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of NICDIT Krishnapatnam Industrial City
Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the Statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory auditors
and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. The
Audit Report has been revised by the Statutory auditors to give effect to some of my audit
observations raised during supplementary audit.

In addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under Section
143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for
enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related Audit Report.

A. Comments on Profitability
Statement of Profit and Loss

Expenses
Other Expenses (Note-19): ¥ 5.37 crore

1. The above includes %4.67 crore towards the expenditure incurred on consultants
appointed as Programme Manager for New Cities (PMNC), which was in the nature of capital
expenditure. Hence, the same should have been recognised as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
and apportioned among projects on a suitable basis, on completion instead of recognizing as
revenue expenditure. Thus, incorrect accounting treatment results in overstatement of Other
Expenses by ¥4.67 crore and understatement of CWIP by %4.67 crore with corresponding

understatement of Profit for the year to the same extent.
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B. Comments on Financial Position

Balance sheet
Other Current Assets
Loans (Note-7): T 300 Crore.

2. The Company deposited ¥300 crore in the form of Inter Corporate Deposit (ICDs) with AP
State Financial Services Corporation L1d (APSFSCL) in August 2021 for a tenure of six months
maturity, i.e. by February 2022, whereas the deposited amount (2300 crore) was not returned by
APSFSCL as on 31 March 2022 afier the maturity of ICDs. Since ICDs were neither renewed
nor any Loan agreement with APSFSCL was in place, the classification of the same as *Loans
receivable’ (Note-6) is not correct. Instead, the same should have been disclosed under Other
Current assets in the nature of receivables. Thus, incorrect classification resulted in
understatement of Other Current assets and overstatement of Loans Receivables bv 3300 crore.

C. Comments on Disclosure.

3. Ason 31 March 2022, the Company issued 51,96,03,120 Equity shares of 210 each to Andhra
Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIIC) for consideration other than cash, i.e.
towards cost of the land admeasuring 2019.8 Acres transferred to the Company. However, the
same was not disclosed in the Note-9 (Equity Share Capital). Non-disclosure results in non-
compliance with the provisions of Schedule-111 of Companies Act 2013, which stipulated that
the Company shall disclose, inter alia, Aggregate number and Class of shares allotted as fully
paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash for the period of five
years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

S ?‘\_)?.J'{' o
(INDU AGRAWAL)
Place: Vijayawada Principal Accountant General (Audit)
Date: 30.08.2023 WY FEIAER (4.4,

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
M/s. NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIALCITYDEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements:

We have audited the accompanyving financial statements of M/s. NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM
INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED (the “Company™), which comprise the Balance
Sheetas at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss. the statement of changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement [or the yvear then ended. and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (collectively referred to as the ‘financial staiements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these fimancial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, fmancial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS') notified under section 133
of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time).

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records. relevant (o the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are {ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Anditor's Responsibility:

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be inchuded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Those standards require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assesement of the risks of material misstatement of the {inancial statements. whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statemenits that give a {rue and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not lor the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the company has in place an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting
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and the operating sffectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our andit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
atoresaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manmer so required and
give atrue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Tnd AS') under sechion 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, of the state ol affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2022 and 1ts Prolit,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date,

Reporton Other Iegal and Regulatory Requirements:

1.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure-A”, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 ofthe Order,

2. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure-B”, a statement on the matters
specified by the Comptroller and Auditor - General.

Lid

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledze and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

bj Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books:

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss. and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply wilh the Ind AS specified under Section
133 ofthe Act, Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013,

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report m
“Annexure—C"; and
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g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
miormation and according (o the explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company does not have pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(it)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transterred to the Investor Education
Protection Fund by the Company.

For KOMMURU ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

FRN: 0500118

CA, K.ZV.SUBBA RAO
Partner, M. No.026688

UDIN: 22026688 AWTSXK 1280
Place: Guntur
Date 1 29.09.2022
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With reference to the Annexure — A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” ol our report of even date to the members of M/s. NICDIT
ERISHNAPATNAMINDUSTRIALCITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED on the financial statements for
the yearended March 31, 2022, we report that:

i} a. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Right of use assets). The company does
not have any intangible asset.

b, Plant, Property and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
mtervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢, There are no immovable properties held by the company other than the properties in which the
company is lessee.

d. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (Right of use assets) during the
yearended March 31,2022,

€. There are no proceedings imtiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benamu
property under the Prohibition of Benani Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

ii) The company does not have physical inventories. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (ii) of the
Orderis not applicable to the company.

iii) a. The company had made deposits of the funds remaining unutilized during the year and having
balance ol Rs. 222.95 Crores with Union Bank of India as on 31,03.2022; and Rs. 300 Crores
with AP State Financial Services Corporation Ltd (APSFSCL) (by way of ICDs (Inter-
Corporate Deposits) for a period of 6 months from (04.08,2021), However, APSFSCL has failed
to return the said ICD’s on maturity. but the interest payments have been made in full. Given this
for FY 21-22, total amount due of INR 300 Crore as al 31.03.2022 are disclozed as “Loans
Receivables considered good - Unsecured” as they are no longer in the nature of ICD s,

b. The loans so disclosed were in the nature of TCDs and treated as Unsecured Loans as APSFSCL
has failed to return the same. Interest during the year have been made in full and has returned an
amount of only INR 64.5 Crores in tranches till 20th Sep 2022 | post various follow ups by
NKICDL. Management of NKICDL has in line with Boards’ directives have continuously
followed up to get back the Maturity proceeds from APSFSCL and the matter has been
escalated to GoAP and as on the date of signing the financial statements the matter is with the
GoAP. Considering the interest pavments and cash received in tranches. realizability of the said
amount can be reasonably anticipated, and thus it cannot be considered as prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

c. Interest repayments were regular in the said Unsecured loan. but the principal portion was not
vetrepaid in full.

d, There are no overdues for more than 90 days as on 31.03.2022, however the Company made
various follow ups with APSESCL.

e. As mentioned above, the Company has not provided any facility in the nature of Loan, but
disclosed ICDs as unsecured loan given the circumstances and hence this sub-clause is not
applicable to the Company.

f. The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repaynent.
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iv) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
advanced any loan, given any guarantee or provided any security to the parties covered under
section 185 of the Act. According lo the information and explanations given (o us and the records of
the Company examined by us, provisions of section 186 of the Act are not applicable since the
company has not made any investments during the year.

v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaming of section 73 to 76 of the Act and Rules frames
thereunder. Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order does not arise.

vi) Maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly. paragraph 3{viii) of the order is not applicable to this Company.

vii)

4. According to the mformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues applicable to it during the vear with appropriate authorities though there have
been slight delays m few cases. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid
statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed Statutory dues
for the company.

viil, The Company has not surrendered or disclosed as mcome, transaction notrecorded in the books of
accounts, in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961.

a. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings duning the year and hence, clause 3(ix)(a)
ofthe Order 1s nol applicable.

b. The Company is not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other
lender.

Mo term loans were oblained.
d. No funds were raised on short term basis.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or Joint Ventures and hence, clause
(3Nix)(e) & () is not applicable,

L2

L

a. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument) and any new term loans during the vear. However, the Company has
raised money by way of rights issue. The same were deposited into various FDs till the time of
requirementolsuch money m the business.

b. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the
year,

i,
a. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, we

have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reported during the year. nor have we been informed of any such case by the
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management.,

b. Any Reportunder sub- section (12) of section 143 of companies actin form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit & Auditor) Rules, 2014 with central government has not
been filed.

c¢. Any whistle blowercomplaints have not been received during the year.

xil. Inouropinion and according Lo the information and explanations given (o us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) (a) (b) and (¢) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

x1ii, According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, all transactions with related parties are in complisnce with the
provisions of section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable the details have been disclosed
the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting standards.

X1V,
a. According to the mformation and explanations given tous, the Company had appointed Internal
Auditors on 26th June 2022 and the Internal Audit was conducted for the Financial Year 2021-
22.

b. Internal Auditor reports for the period were considered during the statutory audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the
directors or persons connected with the directors. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

xvi.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 453-IA of the Reserve bank of India, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(xvi)isnotapplicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non Banking Finaneial or Housing Finance activities.

¢. The Company 1s not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India.

d. The Company is not part of any Group having CIC as part of the Group.

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year,
xvili, There has been no resignation of statutory anditor durimg the vear.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and conduct of audit, no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company 15 capable of meesting its
liabilities existing as on the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the date of balance sheet.

a. Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 15 applicable to the company, however due to
inadequacy of average Net profits during the three immediately preceding financial years, there
15 no requirement to utilise any amount as specified in second proviso to sub-section (5 of
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section 135 of companies Act 2013,
b. The Company does nothave any ongoing project and thus Paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

xxi. According to the Information and explanations given to us, Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act,2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, Paragraph 3{xx1) of the order is not
apphcable to the Company.

For KOMMURU ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

FRN: 0500118
CA. K.V.SUBBA RAO
Partner, M. No.026688

UDIN: 22026688AWTSXK1280
Place: Guntur
Date @ 29.09.2022
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ANNEXURE - B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Report under 143(5) of Companies Act 2013

With reference to the paragraph 2 under the heading "Report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of M/s. NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM
INDUSTRIALCITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March

31,2022, we report that:
General
Sk No. Audit Observations Reply
L. In case of works executed with the funds of Central | No works were executed with the

or State government{s)/ other user deparimeni(s)
or their agencies, whether there is conclusive
evidence that the assets created will be the assets of
the PSU? If not, the accounting treatment of the
funds received, utilized, returned, assets created
upto and during the year (work-in-progress or
completed), assets handed over to the fund-giving
agency upto and during the year. assets impaired, if
any, and the revenue/ commission/ centage realised
on these works, with full quantitative details may
be detailed.

funds received (in consideration
for issue of equity shares) during
the year.

Where Grants are received from Central or State
governmeni(s)’ other user depariment(s) or their
agencies,

a. Where grants are taken as revenue for the year,
whether the concerned orders are clear that the
funds can be utilised forrevenue expenditure.

b. Where guarantee commission is to be paid, the
quantitative details viz., amount guaranteed,
rate of guaranteed commission, whether the
commission was paid or payable along with the
details of the purpose of raising the funds with
puarantee and whether the funds were utilised
for the stated purpose:

There are no grants recetved from
Central or State Government(s)/
other user department(s) during the
Financial Year. However, funds
were received [from National
Industrial Corridor Development
and Implementation Trust
(NICDIT) in the form of
consideration for 1ssue of Equity
shares,

Where any long-term hability is undertaken
apgainst an asset of finite lifetime. whether there isa
clear accounting policy thereon (for instance, land
obtaimed on lease for a specific period (whether
renewable or non-renewable) but shares issued in
liew of the land lease)

Land has been taken on Lease fora
period of 99 years and the
Accounting policy followed by the
Company is in accordance with Ind
AS 116" Leases™.
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Whether the corresponding expenditure on which
the taxes paid/ payable are accounted in the
financial statements is also included appropriately

All corresponding expenditure on
which taxes paid/ payable are
accounted in the financial
statements appropriately.

Whether there is a Public Deposit account in the

name ofthe PSU? If yes,

a. Funds debited from the PD account
erroneously/ laspsed by the treasury, but
claimed by the Company as recervable/ 1ts own
funds;

b. If any funds given by any Government or
apencies other than the State Government wers
lapsed, the details of the same may be detailed;

¢. Details of the funds raised through loans (with
or without government guarantee) and
deposited in PD Account; Purpose of the loans
and whether the purpose is initiated/complsted;

d. Whether guitable disclosure on the restriciions
or additional permissions required on
withdrawing the funds in PD Accounts is
included or not;

e. The quantitative details of the bills sent for
clearing against the PD account balances but
not cleared/ returned unpaid as on the reperting
date along with age-wise analysis;

No Public Deposit account is held
in the name of the Company.

Where funds are raised by the Company and the
payment of Principal or Interest or both are met by
the State Government or its agencies, directly or
mdirectly, the details and the purpose of these loans
may be stated along with the fact whether the funds
were utilised for the stated purpose

There are no loans availed by the
Company.

Whether the land owned by the Company is
encroached, under litigation, not put to use or
declared surplus. Details may be provided.

No land i3 owned by the Company.
However, the Company holds
Leasehold land.

Whether the inventory has been taken on the basis
of physical wverification after adjustment of
shortage/ excess found and whether due
consideration has been given for deterioration/
obsolescence in the quality which may result into
overvaluation of stock?

Company does not hold any
inventory during the year.
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Whether the cost incurred on abandoned projects
has been written off?

No abandoned projects in the
Company

10.

Cases ol wrong accounting of inlerest carned on
account of non-utilization of amounts received for
certain projects/schemes may be reported,

No instance of wrong accounting
of interest eamned on account of
non-utilization of amounts
received for certain projects/
schemes.

11.

Whether the bifurcation plan (between Andhra
Pradesh & Tlelangana States), if any, for the
Company is finalised and approved, Whether the
accounting treatment as per the plan and the
suitable detailed disclosures are given. Deviations
may be stated.

Mo bifurcation plan (between
Andhra Pradesh & Telangana
States) is applicable to the
Company.

Sector Specific Sub-directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Infrastructure Sector
Sk No. Audit Observations Reply
1 Whether the Company has taken adequate | Adequate measures were taken to

measures to prevent encroachment of idle land
owned by it. Whether any land of the Company is
encroached, under litigation, not put to use or
declared surplus? Details may be provided.

prevent encroachment of idle land
by Zonal manager, APIIC and
Security were located at the site to
look into the activities and take
Proper measures.

Whether the system in vogue for identification of
projects to be taken up under Public Private
Partnership iz in line with the guidelines/ policies
ofthe Government? Comment on deviation if any.

Not applicable to the Company.

L

Whether system lor monitoring the execution of
works vis-a-vis the milestones stipulated in the
agreement is in existence and the impact of cost
escalation, if any, revenues/ losses from contracts,
ele., have been properly accounted for in the books.

A proper system for momtoring the
execution ol works e, milestones
stipulated in the agreement with
the vendor is in place.

Whether the bank guarantees have been
revalidated in time?

No bank guarantees were issued by
the Company during the FY 2021-
22,

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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£ The cost incurred on abandoned projects may be
quantified and the amount actually writlen-off
shall be mentioned.

Mo abandoned projects m the
Company

UDIN: 22026688AWTSXK1280
Place: Guntur
Date : 29.09.2022

For KOMMURU ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

FRN: 0500118
CA. K.V.SUBBA RAO
Partner, M. No.026688
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ANNEXURE - C TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Conirols over financial reporting of M/s. NICDIT
KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audil of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company™s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Nole™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI"), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
saleguarding of ils assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Aunditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate mternal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Ouwr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivensss. Cur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
conirols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finanecial reporting and the preparation of fnancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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Company's Internal Financial Contrel over tinancial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of
financial statements tn accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipis
and expenditurez of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tmely delection ol unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial
Control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deferiorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls system
over financial reporting and such Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the nternal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAT.

For KOMMURU ASSOCTIATES
Chartered Accountants
Sd/-
UDIN: 22026688AWTSXK1230 FRN: 0500118
Place: Guntur CA. KV.SUBBA RAO
Date : 29.09.2022 Partner, M., No.026688
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963

Balance Sheet as at

March 31, 2022

(Al amounts in TNR Lakhs)

Farticulars Ntz Ni. A at 318t March 2022 As ot 31s0 Macch 2021
ASSETR
MNon-current aasets
Right of Use Assets 2 51,5369 45,1352
Capital work-in-progress 3 Q43,7 2427
Drefierred tax aspatn (net) - 04 33
Total non-current assets 52,4800 A6, 0433
Current agsets
Finangial asgeds
Cash andd cash equivalents 5 1426 450564
Uther fmancial assels (1] 22A%0.0 1950
Orther current assets T S0,000.0 .
Tutnl current azdets ] GES.E 3594
Tutal assers 530214 456505
1661014 ¥1,714.1
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital g 1044206 30.644.9
Orther equity 50018 3567 (262.4)
Total equity 1,04,7773 90,382.4
LIABILITIES
Won-Current Babilities
Financial liabilities
Lease Ligbality 140 %1 253
Crher nap-cument lakilities 11 9427 9427
Current Uabilites
Finnncinl linbilities
Trade Payables 12 3.8 1.5
Oithar current Tiabitities 13 3058 k17
Provisions 14 447 0.3
Total current Halilities i52.2 1638
Total - equity and Liabilitics 1,06,101.4 91,714,1
Summary of significant sccownting policies 1

The aecompanying notes form | o 27 are an iniegral part of the finane:al statements

A3 per our report of even dated
For Kommuru Asseciates
Chartered Accounlamts

FRM: 0500113

L
K.V, Subba Ran
Partmor
ifembership Mo, G2AGEE
DN 22026688 AWTEXE 1 280

Ploce - Mlengplogirl
Trate s 24/09/2023

Fur nnd en behall of the Buard of Directors
MICINT Krishnapumam Indumrial Cipbevelopment Lyd.

Sil/-

Javvadi Venkain Naga
Subramamyam, LAS
Diirectoz
DIM: 07933156

Sdi-
Venkateshwarn Boo Palet
Cheef Fimancia! Officer

Salf-
Ramakrishnan
Earikalvalnven, 1AS
Dizector

BTN (1515045

Sdi-
CH.N.V.Rnmbala
Comjpany Secreisry

WMo, 44763
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al armiounts in TN Lakhs)

Barticulars Note No| For the year ended 313t Mareh, 2022 | For the year ended 315t March, 2021
Income

Revenue from operations - -
Oither meome i3 176 269
Total incame [ 1) [ ] 6.9
EXT'ENEES

Cogt of Baley -

Employee benefih: expendes 16 17 il
Finance Costs 17 o 1} bo
Depizriagtion & smortisstion Expenges 18 A97 0 75
(ither e penses g 376 2830
Total gxpenses | 17 ) 1.058.3 2936
Enruings before Interest, Tne, Depreciztion and Amoriisstion (EBTTDAY (1-1T) B50.3 1266,7)
Profit befse tax E59.3 12166.7)
Tax expenze

Cnrreni 1ax 2353 -
Deferred tax 4 50 14.3)
Tneome X expense 2400 {4.31
FProfic for the vear (1Y=Y) 6142 1262.4)
Othes comphrehansive incime (CCT)

Ttems thit will mot be reclagsified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement gainz| losses) on defined benefil plans 5 -
Tax gn remeasurement of defined penefit plans - =
Ttemy that will be reclessified sobssguently to profit or less:

Fair value movements on cagh flow hedges - -
Tax on far vadus movemsenty on cazh fow hedges -

Total other comprehensive income for e year, net ol tox -

Totul comprehensive incoms for the year, net of tax a2 1262.4)
Earnings per equity share Ra. 10~ each fally paid 20

Coppuied on the hasis of toral profit for the year

Hasic (Rs,] 0.0 (3.8
Diilted (Ra) .06 350

The aecompanying notes form | o 27 are an iniegral part of the finane:al statements

A3 per our report of even dated

For Kommuru Asseciates

Chartered Accouniants For and vn behall of the Buard of Directors

FRN:- 0500113 MICDIT Krishnapumam Indumrial CiiyDevelopment Lyd.

Seli- Sd/- Sadli-

K.V, Subba Ran Javvadi Venkain Naga Ramakrishnan

Partnor Subramamyam, LAS Kankalvalmen, LAS

ifembership Mo, G2AGEE Diirectoz Director

DN 22026688 AWTEXE 1 280 DIM: Q7955856 BTN (1515045

Place - dMangalsged Sd- Sdi-

Tate: 29/04/2022 Venkateshwara Buo Paleti CHLN.V.Rnmbalro
Cheef Fimancia! Officer Comjpany Secreisry

M Mo, 44763
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Al amountz in TN Lakhg)

Particalars For the year ended 31 March 2022 | For the year ended 31 March 2021
Frofivbefore vax B50.3 1206.7)
Cash Flows from aperating activities

Adpuztments for -

Diepreciation end Amorhisation 4970 1.5
Intpest poriion on Legse Lighility 20 o0
Operating profit before working capital changes 13583 1259.1)
Movement in working capial:

Change I Working Capiral 1836.1) 125
Prvision for Income Tax {a3a.dh -
Change m current assets {494} 133830
Change in cutzeat lishilites {11.6% 3e0E
Change in other Non current Ligbalites - 234
Met cash fMlows fram aperating activities (A) 4622 {213.3)
Cash flows used in investing activities

Arquisifion of lease hold rights (6.9} 451
Capiial work in Progtess - (25 4
Tnvestment in Fixed Deposits 122,295.0) 30633
Inerense in Unsecured Loans advnnced by the compary 3000000 -
Investmenl in ICTYs e H
Nzt cash Mows used in investing aciivities (B) {82.301.9) 2347
et cesh flows from financing activities

Proceeds from wsue of equity shares £.BET.S 45,072 4
Interest postion of the lease lHability (2.0% {000
Prancipal portien of lease liability (00 -
Wet cash fMows from/{used in) financing actvides () [ 45,0724
et increaged decTease) ncash and cesh equivalents (AB+HT) (44,953.8) 45,0038
agh and gash equivalents ot the beginning of the year 45,0964 ¥
Cash and cash squivalents at the year end 142 6 A5,
Component of cush und cash equivalemts:

Cagh gn hand

Balances with banks

Cm current a5gounts 142.6 45,0464
n dividand accourts E -
On depoai accounts = =
Tutal cash and cash puivilents 142.6 45,0064

The accompanying notes from 1 1o 27 ere an intzgral port of the finanoal statemeniz.

Ag per oul report of even dated
For Kommuru Assvcinics
Chartered Accountants

FEN: Q50118

S
K.V, Subba Rao
Parmer
MWembeshin Mo, 026688
LD ; 22026688 AW TERK 1280

Plnce : hiangalagir]
Trate - 28/03/2022

Far and on bebialf of the Baard of Direcrors
WICDIT Krishnapatnam Indostrial Chadevelopment Ll

Sl
Javvadi Yenlinta Naga
Subrumsneam, 1AS
DHirector
DIM: 7935156

Sdi-
Venlateshwara Ran Paleti
Chiaf Finaneis] Officer

i
Ramalorishnan
Karikabwlaven, IAS
Director
I Glai9ads

He/-

CH.N.V.Rambabu

Cndnpany Secreary
M Ma, 44763
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al arngunts in TN Lakhs)

&, Equity share capiial
Equity stares of Ra. 10 each, Tolty paid up Hi Rz
Ag atApril 01, 2021 N £ 4B 568 449
Changes duting the yeas 137757872 137754
Ag at March 31, 2022 1,04 42,086,240 104420.6
by, Other Equiry
Hegerves & Surplog Other comprehengive ncome Total
Capital | Seeurvitier | Share based | Remined Effective. | Re-measurement
Partleulars Reserve | Prgmium | paymems | Earnings | povtion of cash | guins or lusses un
reserve low hedge  |#miployes defined
i i henefic plans
Ealomce as at 1 April 2021040 (2624) 1262.4)
Frofit for e year - - - 0192 - - 619.1
Expense srising fam equity-serled - - - : E :
share-based payment transacthong - -
Transferred from stock options - - - - E P =
outytanding - ~
Finaf dividend on equity shares = + - - - = .
Tax on final dividend on equity shares . : - . . : i
Effective pactron of changes in far valus of cigh . . - - - = "
femessuzement on nef deflned penefl . - * - F .
s ol March 31, 2022 356.7 356.7
Reserves & Surplus Chher comprehensive Income Totl
Cripital | Stcuvities | Shnre based Hetzincd Effeclive | Re-mensurement
Particulars Reserve | Premium | payments Earnings | portion of cagh | gains ot losses an
TeRSTVE Muw hedge  |¢mployee defimed
- benefit plans
Balanee as-at 1 April 2020 0y (00
Prodit for the year - - - (262.4) - - {2624
Expense arising from equity-setled : % < . ; : B
tshase-based payment Fangactiong - -
TransTerred from siock uptions - - - - - -
outstanding -
Final dividend on equity shaies - - - c 3
Tax on final dividend on equiry shares - - - - - .
Effective portion of changes in farr valee of cash = = = 3 = e 5
Hemeasurement on ner Jefined penefic - - - 5 " 2 .
As ut March 31, 2021 (2624} 12624

At
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Shareg ield iy promaoters al the gnd of the Year
% Chunge
Promoters Name Mo, of shares | % of Total |  during the yeur
“shares
Andhia Pradesh Tndustrial Infrasirucrure Corporation Linated] ARTTC) SL2LAZIIT | 400000047 15.20%
e Ex e off rimal T Fial Corridor
]f:: mfp:"m am;' m:ﬁ?;;;“r:ﬁ mﬁ?} Sty SIALA5IE | 49.990900x] 15.20%
TV Eomanathan 1 B.000a001 (1.00%%
Gurupeasid Mohapites 1 00000000 0.00%
Siva Satyanarayans Reddy Mands 1 0.0000001 0.00%,
Chitturl Veera Venbata Satyanazayans Pragad 1 RN 0.00%
Renginent Chencheiah 1 (RG] 0.00%s

The accompanying notes from 1 1o 27 are an integral part of the financial staiements,

As per our repart of even doted
For Kommiari Asgecinfes
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 0300118

Sdr=
K.Y, Subba Ran
Partner
Membership No. (26658
DN | 220266BBAWTSXK 1280

Place - Mangalagmi
Date : 20/09/2023

For snd un bihalfl of the Bourd of Direciors
NICIIT Krighnapamam Indugorial CriyDevelapment Lid.

Sli-
Javvadi Yenkam Naga
Subramanyam, 1AS
Driregiog
i 7935156

8d/-
Venleateshwara Hno Paleti
Chisf Finencial Officer

Bl
Ramakrishinan
Karikalvalaven, 1AS
Thirecior

DIy 1519945

Sd/-
CHNV Rambubu

Comnpany Secretary
MM 44763
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108%63
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Al amountz in TN Lakhs)

L. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Corporateinformation

"NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED (NKICDL) is a
Unlisted Public Limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 07 August 2018 under
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 10th Floor, APIIC
Towers, Plot No. 1, IT Park Mangalagiri, Guntur AP 522503, India. The company’s business is to
develop industrial township project, runk infrastructure and the strategic projects and monetize Land at
Krishnapatnam Node spreading across the SPSR Nellore District in the state of Andhra Pradesh, on
public-private partnership (PPP) mode, or any other mods deemed appropriate, whether whole of the
project or any components, and compnising of commercial facilities.

1.2 Basisof preparation

a) Statement of compliance

"The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Tnd AS') notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time). These financial statements have been prepared by the company as a going
concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective or elected for early adoption at the company’s
annual reporting date. 31 March 2022.

br) Basis of Measurement

These financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
unless specifically specified below, except lor financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value at the end of cach reporting period, as required by relevant Ind AS and as explained in the
accounting policies mentioned below."

¢) Use of Estimates and judgements

“The preparation ol financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported balances of revenues,
expensesduring the period.Accounting estimates could change Irom period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and. ifmatenal, their effects are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. Application of accounting policies that require eritical accounting
estimates involving complex and subjective judgements and the use of assumptions in these financial
statements are:

- Income tax and deferred tax
The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating determining
the provision for income taxes.

46
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- Accounting for Leases

Accounting approach with regard to the lease agreement between APIIC and NK1CDL has been based on
the clarifications issued by “Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group™ (ITFG), in Bulletin 21 of TT'FG, Issue
-3 which covers the issue identical to the Transaction between APIIC and NKICDL. (Reference for
source: hitps://resource.cdn.icai.org/56773indas46019.pdl ). Basis the clarifications, the transaction
emanating from the Registered documents dated 26.3.2021 and 28.08.2021, is to be treated as lease
transactions and the Accounting shall be done as per Ind AS 116, in the books of Lessee (NKICDL). The
company has adopted the MCLR rate ol their Primary banker (Union Bank) (or the purpose of arriving at
the present value of the future cash flows.

d) Current and Non-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification.

An asget is treated as current when if 1s
a. Expectedto berealised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period., or
d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used tosettle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.
A liability 1s current when:
a. Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b. Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading
c. Itisduetobesettled within twelve months after the reporting period,
d.  Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months
alter the reporting pertod
The Company classifies all other assets and liabilifies as non-current.

e) Functional currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which 18 fimctional currency of the
company. All the information presented in Indian rupees.

1.3 Significant accounting Policies

a) INDAS 115, Revenue from contracts with Customers

In March 2018, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs("MCA") has notified Ind AS 115, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, which is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018,
This comprehensive new standard supersedes Ind As 18, Revenue, Ind As 11, Construction contracts and
related mterpretations. The new standard amends revenue recognition requirements and establishes
principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.Revenue will be recognised in compliance with Ind AS
115,

b)Revenue Recognition

Profit/Loss is recognized on allotment and transfer of sheds, land, on lease basis and the difference
between sale price and cost price of the assets sold is taken to Profit & Loss Account. where ever the
developmental works are complefed substantially

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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Sale of products: There areno sales during the period.
Sale of services: There areno sales during the period.

¢} Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is anv contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, inthe case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, ransaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assel. Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery ol assets within a time frame established
by repulation or convention in the market place (e.g., regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing compoenents, mn which case they are recognised at fair value. The
Company’s trade receivables do not contain any signilicant linancing component and hence are
measured at the transaction price measured under Ind AS 115.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
a.  Debtinstruments at amortised cost:
b.  Debtmnstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT);
¢.  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVIPL); and
d.  Equityinstruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) the asset 15 held within a buginess model whose objective 1sto hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows; and

b) contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Ameortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 15 recognised directly in the
statement of profit and loss and presented in other income. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This calegory generally applies to (rade and other
receivables.”

Debtinstrument at FVTOCI
Adebtmstrument”is classified as at the FYTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and
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b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCT). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gam or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned
while holding a FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate
method,

Debtinstrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the
Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.”

Equi vestments

All equity investments within the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which ars held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity imstruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income.

Subgequent changes in the fair value the Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument
basis, The classification 15 made upon initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the Company decides to
classify an equity mstrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends. are recognised in the OCL There is no recveling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. Equity investments designated as FVTOCI are not subject to impairment
assessment,"

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the statement of profitand loss."

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assels) is primarily derecognised (1.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

-Therights to receive cash [lows from the asset have expired; or

-Both (1) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation (0 pay the received cash flows in [ull without matenal delay lo a third party under a “pass-
through' arrangement; and (2) cither (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has {ransferred control of the asset. When the Company has transterred its rights
to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pasa-through arrangement, it evaloates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
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Company coniinues to recognise the translerred assel to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the nights and obligations that the Company
has retained

Impairment of trade receivables and other financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables or any contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset.

For this purpose. the Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on the trade receivable balances. The application of this simplified approach does not require
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its wade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed."

d) Property, Plant & Equipment

Recognition & Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured al cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes taxes, duties,
freight and other incidental expenses directly related to acquisition/construction and installation of the
assets. Any trade discounts apd rebates are deducted in amiving at the purchase price.Subsequent
expendhiture related to an stem of fixed asset 18 added to its book value only, if they increase the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred. Capital work-in-progress includes fixed asseis not ready for their intended use and related
incidental expenses and attributable interest. Gaing or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at
the time of disposal and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets (property. plant and equipment) is calculated on Straight Line
Method basis using life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013, In respect of Property,
Plant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation 1s provided on a pro-tata basis from the
date on which asset is ready for use. Depreciation method, useflul lives and residual values of Property,
Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
The lease hold rights are amortised over the term of lease 1.e., 99 years.

¢) Intangible Assets

An intangible asset 1s recognised. only where 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits atiributable fo
the asset will accrue to the enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at
cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets not ready for the
intended use on the dale of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as intangible assets under development. In
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respect of intangible assets acquired / purchased during the year, amortization is provided on a pro-rata
basis from the date on'which such assel is ready to use.

The residual value, useful live and method of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
fiIncome Tax

Income Tax expense consists of current & deferred tax.

Current Tax

Current {ax is recognised in the Statement of profit & loss except to the extent that 1t relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Current tax is the expected tax pavable
on the taxable mecome for the year, using the rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
any adjustment (o tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

"Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assels and labilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Delerred Lax assets are recognised Lo the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be ulilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting dale
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the assetis realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred fax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCT or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are oflset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authonty.”

g} Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 1s provided. A hability isrecognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive

obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.
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(ii) Defined contribution 5
The Company’s contributions to delined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss
as and when the services are received from the employees."

(iii) Defined benefit plans

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using
the projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be
patd. and that have terms to matunty approximatmg to the terms of the related defined benefit obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market interest rates on government bonds
are used. The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the statement of profit and
loss in employee benefit expense, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements, Past service costs are
recognized immediatelv in the statement of profit and loss."

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss when the Company
is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal. to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognised as an expense in the statement of proht and loss if the Company has made an offer
encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably.

(v) Other long-term employvee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long-term employee benefits 15 the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That
benefit is discounted to determing its present value. Re-measurements are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise.The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discountrate Lo the net balance ol the delined benefit obligation and the [air value ol plan assets. This cost
is included in emplovee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss, Actuarial pains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for defined benefit obligation
and plan assets are recognised in OCT in the period in which they arise.

When the benefits under a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss. The Company recognises gains or losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
obligation when the settlement occurs."

h) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

"Provisions are recognised when the Company has 4 present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result
ot a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Acontingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements,

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due Lo the passage ol time is recognised as a finance cost."

i) Cash and cash equivalents

"Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the Company’s cash management."

j) Earnings pershare

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data [or iis ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit & loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss atinbutable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential shares, which includes all
stock options granted to employees

k) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported usmg indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
the transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or aceruals of past or future operating cash receipts and
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash
{lows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

) Leases—INDAS 116

Identifying a lease

Atinception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is,
or contains, a lease il the contract conveys the right to control the use of' an identilied asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Anentity shall reassess whether a contract is, or containg, a lease only
if the terms and conditiens of the contract are changed.

The lease terim begins on the commencement dale (i.e. the date on which the lessor makes the underlying
asset(s) available for use by the lessee) and includes any rent-free or reduced rent periods. It comprises:

1.  thenon-cancellable period ofthe lease;
periods covered by an option to extend the lease 1f the lessee 1s reasonably certain to exercize that
option; and

3. penods covered by an option to terminate the lease ifthe lessee is reasonably ceriain not to exercise
that option.

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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A lease is no longer enforceable when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease
without permission from the other party with no more than an insignificant penalty. An entity shall revise
the lease term if there is a change in the non- cancellable period of a lease.

Recognition of lease by Lessee

On the commencement of the lease, lessee needs to recognise the right-of- use asset and measure it at
cosl. Lessee should also recognise a lease hability and measure it at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments should be discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if readily determinable or else using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The
company has adopted the MCLR rate of their Primary banker (Union Bank) for Tranche 1 Land Transfer
and MCLR rate of Largest Nationalised Bank (SBI) for Tranche 2 Land Transfer for the purpose of
arriving at the present value of the future cash flows.

Subsequent measurement of right-of-use asset

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset shall be measured by applymg a cost model or revaluation model if
the underlying assel belongs to the class ol assets to which the enfity applies revaluation model as per Ind
AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

After mitial recognition, the lease Liability i1s measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to
reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments,

Presentation by Lessee

The right-of-use assets should be either presented separately from other assets in the balance sheef or
disclosed in the notes. Ifnot presented separately, they should be presented in the appropriate line item of
the balance sheet as if they were owned and disclose in the notes the line items which include such assets.
The lease liabilities should be presented either separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet or
disclose in the notes the line iterns which include the lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets that meel the definition of investment property are presented within investment
property.

In the statement of profit and loss. a lessee shall present interest expense on the lease lability separately
from the depreciation charge for the right-of-use asset. Interest expense on the lease liability is a
component of finance cost that requires to be presented separately in the statement of profit and loss.

In the statement of cash flows, a lessee shall classify:

a.  cash payments for the principal portion of the lease hability within financing activities;

b. cashpayments for the interest portion of the lease liability within financing activities applying the
requirements in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, for mterest paid; and

¢.  short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments not
meluded m the measurement of the lease liability within operating activities.
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
i All amounts in INR Lakhs)

2 Right of Use Asset

Particulars As at 31 Mareh 2022 Asat 31 March 2021
Lease hold Land 51.536.9 45,1352
51.536.9 45,1352

Tnd AS 116 - Leases

Assumptions: Lease payments should be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if readily
determinable or else using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The company has adopted 7.2% per annum
for the purpose of arriving at the present value of the future cash flows pertaining o Fivst Tranche and 720 for
sccond tranche basis NKICDL banker MULR rales. Lease temure for deriving the present value of the lease
remtals has been considered basis the current lease periodi.e 99 years.

Methodology : Accouniing approach with regard (0 the lease agreement belween APIC and MEICDL has
been based on the clarifications issued by “Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group” (ITFG). m Bulletin 21 of
ITFG. Issue -3 which covers the issue identical to the Transaction between APIIC and NKICDL. (Reference for
source: https:/resowrce.cdn.icalorg’56773inda=s46019.pdE ). Basis the cladfications, the wmansaction
emanating from the Registered documents dated 26.3.2021 | is (o be treated a3 lease transactions and the
Accounting shall be done as per Ind AS 116, m the books of Lessee (NEKICDL),

L ease Term has been considered hagis Lease Agreement which is for a period of 39 years and the Lessee shall he
entitled, by izsuing a written notice to the Lessor not later thon 1{one) year prior 1o the expiry of the orginal
(ninety-nine)years, torenew the Leaze by another term of 92 (ninety-nine years) and uponrecerpt of such notice
the Lessor shall renew the Lease for another 99 (ninety-nine) years. Upon expiry of each term of 29 (ninety-
nine) vears, the Lessee shall be eniitled to seelc further renewal of the Lease for a period of 99 (ninety-nine)
years in aceordance with the provisions of the Leose agreement. The Lessee has agreed to pay to the Lessor an
annual leaserentof Rz 100 (Rupees One Hundred only) per acre per anmum.

3 Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Project Development Expendilure 942.7 942.7
242.7 0427
_ To be completed in
Capital work-in-progress

Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
Industrial Corridor a1 Krishnapatam MNode = - 0427

4 Deferred tax assets & Liabilitics

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Deferred tax asset/{liabilities)

Preliminary Exgenses and Unabsorbed loses giving rise to temporary differsnces 0.4 53
Deferred tax assets (Net) 0.4 3.3

(" Annunl Repory 2020-2022
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For the vear ended March 31, 2022:

Recognised
Particulars As at 1st Apr 2021 | Profit & Loss | Equity |As at 31 March 2022
PrelimmaryExpensiss aiving ride 1o lemporary differences 53 50 = 0.4
Ned Delerved Tax Assels/{liabilities) 5.3 5.0 4 0.4
For the vear ended March 31, 2021:
Recognised
Particulars Asat Ist Apr 2020 | Profit & Loss | Equity| As ar 31 March 2021
Prelimmary Bxpeases and unnbeoibed losses giving
rise tp temporary differences .1 4.3 - 53
Net Deferred Tax Asseis/(liabilities) L1 4.3 =
5 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars Ay at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
AJ Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks 1426 | 45,0964
- On current accounts = | -
Cash on hand 1426 | 45,096.4
6  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particolars As at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
Fixed Deposils with Banks 224900 195.0

22.490.0 195.0

7  Loans

Particulars Az at 31 March 2022 As al 31 March 2021
Loans Regeivables considered good - Unsecured 3000006

3'“-.“'“!‘.".“ -

AP State Financial Services Corporation Lid. (APSFSCL) has offered to pay interest at 3% p.a, inviting funds
from various Government Corporations, Sccieties, Boards. Trusts. Institutions, Universilies, Special Purposc
Vehicles, ete., in the form of Inter Cotrporate Deposits (ICDs). NKICDL has deposited Re. 300 Crozes as theae
fundz will earn an incremental interest of 1.1% compared to FI¥'s with Union Bank af that point in time, Az per
the assessment made by the Engineering wing, funds will be required to meet the project expenditire of
NKICDL by Jan 2023, given this INR 300 crores are invested with APSFSCL by way of ICDs for 6 months .
Subsequently, the ransaction was pul up lo the Bourd of Direciors for “ratification™ m its 13th Board meeling
dated 24/08/202 1, the board has ratified the action and instructed to deposit Rs, 300 Crores on maturity with g
Mationalized Bank only.

In line with Boasds divectives. NKICDL has made various communications 1o APSFSCL (o refurn the proceeds
on mamrity. APSFSCL has failed to retumn the proceeds on maturity. however interest paviments are being
deposited. Management of MEICTIL in line with Boards ditectives have been continuously following up to get
back the Maturity proceeds from APSFECL and the matier has been escalated to GoAP. Given this for FY 21-
22, total amount due of INE 300 Crore as at 318t March 2022 are disclosed as “Loans Recsivables considered
good - Unzecured”. Maturity Proceeds amounting to Be, 64.5 Croree received Fom APSFSCLAI 20.00.2022
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] Other Current Assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
TDS Receivable - 0.6
Advance { M. Siva Satvanaravana Reddy, CS, APTIC) - 0.6
Security Deposit 0.2 0.2
Interest Income Beceivebla 3555 -
APTIC- Receivable 406.9 3380
Input - G5T 26.2 -
088.8 3394

9  Equity share capital

Particulars As at 31 March 2022)  As at 31 March 2021
Aupthorized
125,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1.25,000 1.25.000
Total 1,25,000 1.25.000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
1,04.42.06.240 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up | 1,04,4206 | 90,644.9 |
Total 1.04,420.6 90,6449
#)  Reconciliation of the shares ontstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting vear
Particulars | Asat31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
MNo. of shares Amouant No. of shares | Amount
Opening number of equity shares/share capilal | 00.64,48,568 |  90,644.9 50.00,000 5000
Add: Isgee of shares during the year 13,77.57.672 13,775.8 00,1443 568 | 00,1440
Outstapding at the end of the year 1,04,42,06,240 | 1,04,420.6 00,64 48,568 | 00,6449

b)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company:

Particulars As al 31 March 2022 Asal3l March 2021
No. of shares| % Holding | No. of shares| %o Holding
Andhrs Pradesh Tndustrial Tnfrastructure
221,053,117 | 4909909979, |4532 Bl |48 09000070
Corparation Limited(APIIC) S i Y

Chief Exsentivz officer (CEO), National Industrial
Corridor Development and Implementation Trust | 32,21,03,118 | 4009900089 |45,32,24 287 | 49 9909908%;
(NICDIT}

c) Details of shares allotted as fully paid ap for consideration other than cash for period of five years
immediately preceding date of Balance Sheet:

As at 31 March | Asat 31 March | As at 31 March | As at 31 March
022 921 2020 2019

Particulars

Equity Shares of Rs 10/~ each allotted as
fully paid-up pursuant to contract{s)
without payment being received incashfo | 52,21,03,117 | 45,32,24,2%81 - -
Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastruciure
Corporation Limited{APIIC) **

Value of Equity Shares (in INR Lakhs) 52.210 45,322
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The ratio of sharebolding of NICDIT and APTIC in the company I8 50% and 30% respectively. APTIC's equity
comribution in share capital is by the way of lease of 12814.51 Acres of land in Krishnapainam Node through
leaze agreement execuled between APIIC and the Company dated 26.03.2021 with docurent na. 1096/2021.
An amount equivalent to the leage value of the land provided by APIC in line with gbove staled Lease
agreement Le., Rs. 450.72.42.840 (Rs. 24.34 Lacs par ace appioved as per Cabingt Committes on Econorniic
Affairs) is transferred by NICDIT on 31.03.202 1 and during FY 21-22. Secand Rights issue has been made by
NEKICDL for 13.77.57,672 shares in which APTIC's equity contribugion is by the way of lease of 277.29 Acres of
lund n Krishnapatnam Node through lease agioement sxecuted between APIIC and the Company daled
28.08.2021 with document no. 1817/2021. An amount equivalent o the lease value of the land provided by
APIC inline with abowve stated Lease agreement e, R, 68,27.88.360 (Rs. 24.84 Lacs peracre approved as per
C'zbinet Committee on Economic Affairs) is transferred by NICDIT on 06.09.202 1. With regard to the shove
twotranches of transfer of lease hold rights stemp duty has been exempted by GoAP vide G.OMS NO 76.

10 MNon-Current Liabilities

11

Particulars Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Lease Liability 291 252

Tortal 29.1 5.2
11 Other Non-Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021

Payable to NICDC Lid towards Project Development Expenditure 9427 9427

Total 942.7 042.7

Amount incurred by the NICDCL{formeely known as DMICDC Limited) on behalf of the company.(as per
clazse 3.4.3(b)iv) of the shareholder's agreement executed berween Andhira Pradesh Indusirial Infrastructure
Corporation Limired and National Industrial Corrider development and implementation Trust(NICDIT)
{earlier DMIC Project Implementation Trust Fund); DMICDC will be entitled to recover project development
expenses incurred by it). Further the above said expenses will be repavable on gensiation of sufficien! surplus
funds by the company as per letter Dated 15/07/2021; 03/05/2019 and 29/06/2020 , Accordingly based on the
management estimate on revenue generation the said item disclosed onder Non-curvent liability. For the current
F¥ 2021-22 there is no such expenditure ineurred by NICDCL.

Trade Payables

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021
Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors 3.8 =
Total i.8 1.5
Other current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021
Current Liabilities i

Professional Tax Pavable 0.1 01 |
Consultancy Charges Pavable - KPMG 251.6 1.4
Cutgtunding Sulary puyuble 28 0.4
TDS payable 432 340.1
GET payable 3.8 -
Other Corrent Liahilities 24 -
Tatal 303.8 362.0
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14 Provisions

15

16

17

18

Particulars

Azat 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Provision for Audit Fee 0.5 0.3
Provision for Income Tax (Ner of TDS Receivable FY 21-22) 4.2 -
Total 44.7 0.3
Other Income

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021
Interest on Fixed Deposits 0237 269
Interest un [CD's 0863 -
Intersst on Income Tax Refund 0.0 -
Tender Processing Fees 1.6 -
Total 1.917.6 26.9
On 1at April 2021, management of NEICDL has mstructed Unton Bank of India by way of letter 1o provide
Sweep-in facility (flexi Option) to the existing currentaccount no. 0134111000035534, on recept of Be. 450.00
Crore from NICDIT, in order to ensure interest benefit an the deposits . Union Bank after much follow up,
converied the said accound into Union Flexi Premium Current Deposit Account i.e, 06/12/202]1 and the
management of NEICDL has raised a claim for the defaulted inlerest and interest lost on account of delay in
converting to sweep in account for the period 1/4/2021 il §/12/2021 with the bank and NEICDL is
continugtsly following #t up on this claim through Emails/Leirers. Union Bank has bean communicating
through mails that the said claim is under process with their competent authority, given the current scenario
mangpemient of NKICDL is nol in 4 position to recognise the revenus 1o line with Indian Avcounting standards
gz the defaulted interest income 18 yet (o be guantified and comnmmnicated by the Union Banl,

Employee benefits expenses

Particulars Asat31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 201!]
Salary 21.7 3.1
Total 21.7 31
Finance Cost

Particnlars As ai 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 2021
Interest poriion on Lease Liability 2.0 ]
Tatal 2.0 0.0
Depreciation & amortisation Expenses

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 | As at 31 March 101]]
Depreciation & amortisation Expenses 497.0 7.5
Toial 44970 1.5
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i All amounts in INR Lakhs)

19 Other expenses

Particulars Az at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Andit fee 0.6 04
Aundit fee (FY 2020-21) 0.2 -
Service & Filing Fees 0.6 2512
Professional Charges 6.3 4.2
Car Hire Charges 47 29
Bank Charges 0.0 0.0
Rates & Taxes 24 4.0
Interest on Tax 413 0.3
Retamemhip Fees 24 0.2
Late Fees on TDS - 0.1
Convevanee 0.1 .0
Professional Tax 0.0 0.0
Consultancy Charges - KIMG 467.0 19.8
Admin Expenditure 0.1 -
Annual Costodian Fee 0.1 -
Marketing & Advertising 0.2 a
Mizc. Expenditure 02 -
Stamp Duty {Rights Tssue) - NSDL 52 -
Stalionery 0.0 -
Tally Subseription 0.2 -
Total 537.6 253.0

2 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars Asat 31 Mnrch 2022 As ot 31 March 2021
Earnings
Profit Attributable Lo equily Share holders of (he Compan 519.2 (262.4)
Shares
Numbet of equity shares at the beginning of the year 00,64 48,568 S0,00,000
MNumber of shares issued during the yesr 137757672 90,14.48.508
Weighted Average Number of shares duting the vear 96,23,00,473 60,723
Esrnings per shace at Pac value 10/- Basic{per share) 0.06 (3.51)
EBarnings per share at Par value 10/- Diluted(per share) 0,08 (3.51}
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Related party disclosures (dkmmouats o THELaxe)

a} Related Parties

Narme of the related party Relationship Corporation

|. Andra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Equity Sharehnlders AP State Government Corporation

Corporation Limited
2. Nationa! Industrial Carvidor Developmentand | Equity Shareholders Central Government Trust
Implementation Trust
3. Nutional Indusitial Costidor Development Contral & Significant | Public Limited Company

Corporation Limited influence

1) List of Directyrs & Kev Muanagerial Personnel of the company is as below

1) Ramakrishnan Earikalvalaven Thirector

2} Javvadi Venlata Naga Subiamanyam Drirector

3) Shan Mohan Sagili Drirector

4) Pradeep Kurmar Agarwal Divector

5) Abhizhek Chaudhasy THirector

o) Srikanth Kommn Director

7} Veakaleshwara Rao Paleti Chief Financial Offices (Date of Joining: 12th Oclober 2022}

¢) Transactions with Related Parties

1, Name of the Related Party APTIC Led | NICDIT NICDC  |Venkateshwara Rao Palet
Exquity Eguity  [entrol & Siguificant KMP - CF{)

Shareholders riheld i

2. Mapure of Helajionship . ks il inflnence

3, Nature of Transactions: As at March ¥, 2022

(i) Equoity Contribanon 6,887.9 6,887.9 - -

(i) Reimbursements 4645 - -

{iii) Advanee E = =

(v} Project Developmant Expendifure puyabie - e .

(v} Salary . - - 7.0

Ouistanding (Payables)/ Receivables (1.5) . = 5

1. Nomie of the Related Farty APIC Lid NICDIT NICDC |Venkateshwara Rao Palet
Equity Equity | Contral & Signifieant KNP - CFO

2. Nature of Relationship Biuhoidn | Sk et

3, Nature of Transactions: As 2 March 31, 2011

{1} Eguity Conrribniion 450724 | 450724 -

{ii) Reimbursements 2058 - -

(iii} Advance 5.0 - - -

(i} Pruject Development Expenditure payablo _ 254

{v) Salary z = =

Ourstanding (Payables)’ Receivables 33K - (942, 7}

Note: NICDC has incurrsd project development expenditure on behall of NKICDL and one of the disector of
the WNEICDL is the Chief Financial Officer of the NICT)C, hence given the significant influence, Transaction is
recorded on the market value at arms length basis,
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1711 Anditors® remuneration

Particulars ¥or the Year Ended 31 | For the Year Ended 31
March 2022 Murch 2021

Statulery Audit fee 0.4 04

22 | Amount Payable to Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises Az at3st | Asat March

March 2022| 31,2021

a} The amounts remaiming unpaid to micrs and small suppliers as at the end -
ofthe year- Principal & [nteresi. influstce

b) The Amount of Interest paid by the buyers as per the MEMED Act, 2005, -

¢} The amounis of the payments made to micro and srall suppliers beyond - -
the appointed day during the each accounting vear,

d) The ampunt of Interest due and payable for the penod of delsy in making -
payment{which have been paid but beyond the appointed dav during the
year) but without adding the mterest specified under MSMED Act.

&) The amount of interest acerued and romainmg unpaid al the end of the -
eachaccounting vear.

f} The amount of firther intercst remaining due and payabla even in the -
succeeding yvear, undil such date when the interesl dues az above are
actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as
deductible expenditure under MSMED Act

23 Segment Reporting

The company’s business is to develop indusitial {ownship project. tmunk infrastructire and the strategic
projecis. As the company wei to siarl ils operatons, no operating segmenis were identified as per Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS ) 108 "Operating Segments”, Accordingly no disclosures wers made,

24 Project Development Expenditure Incurred on behalf of the company.

Tn aggordance with the letier dated 15th Jul, 2021 from NICDCL{formerly known as Delhi Mumbai Indostrial
Cormrdor development corporation Limited) rolating to project development expenditure({lowards Delailed
Master plan, preliminary design repoit, Environmental Impact and related expenditure) incucred by the
NICDYCL Pursuant to shareholders agreement dated 23/07/2017 on behalf of the company to consider and
account for the said expenditure in the books of the company as per direction of Comptroller and Auditor's
General of Tndia{CAG). The Baard of directors has considered and taken note of the said matter.

25 Ratio Analysis

Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21 | % Change Reason
 Current Ratio | 15223 | 12543 |  21.4% | Na
' | %% of change is pimarlly driven due to
Return on ., | investment of amount received from NICDIT
Equity Ratio 0.01 (0.00) 303.5% | towards equity contribution in Fixed Deposits
' rasulting inincroased Interest income leadimg to
mereased net profit during the current fnancial

year.
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Net Profit Ratio

0.32

(5.74)

103.3%

% of change is primarily driven due 1o investment
of amount regerved from NICDIT towards equity
conlribution in Fixed Deposils resulting in
increnzed Interest income leading to Incrsased nel
prafit during the current financial year,

Betum on
Irvestment

0.04

0.00

6025.9%,

e of change is primarily driven due to investment
of amount received from NICDIT towards eguity
coniribution in Fixed Deoposits resulting in
in¢reased Inlsresl income leading lo increased nel
profit during the current financial year,

Formula for computation of ratios arc as follows:

Particulars Computation

. . Current Assets
Current Ratio Current Liabilities

. : Profit atter Tax

Retum on Equity Ratio Sharcholders Equity

_ ) Met Profit after Tax
Met Profit Ratio Total meome
. . Other Income (Excluding Dividend)

eturn on Investment Average Cash. Cash Equivalents & Other Marketable Securitics

26 Mo Confingent Liabalities tor the vear ended 31st March 2022,
27 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified rearronged whenever negessary.
Az per our report of even date

For Kommurn Associntes

Chartered Accountsnts
FEN- 0500118

Sd/-
K.V, Subba Rao

Partner
Merabership No. 026688
UDIN - 22026638 AWTSXEK 1280

Place : Mangalagiri
Date ¢ 20/00/2022

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
NICDIT Krishnapatonam Indosirial CityDevelopraent Lid.

Sd- S~
Javvadi Venkata Naga Ramakrishnan
Subramanyam, TAS Karikalvalaven, TAS
Director Dhrector
DIN: 07935136 DIN: 01519045
S/~ Sd/-
Venkateshwsara Rao Paled CH.MN.V.Eambabu
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M.Ne. 44763
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NICDIT KRISHNAPATNAM INDUSTRIAL CITY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
(Joint Venture of APIIC & NICDIT)
CIN: U45200AP2018PLC108963

15t Floor, THC Corporate, Plot No. 3,4 & 6, Industnal Park, Mangalagin, Andhra Pradesh-322503, India
Ph: +9] 863 2381830 | Email: companysecretary(@kriscity.in | Website: www.kriscity.in




